
 
 

 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF HEARING 
BY THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

under the 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
Date and Time: MONDAY, 22 AUGUST 2022, AT 10.00 AM 

 

Place: COUNCIL CHAMBER - APPLETREE COURT, BEAULIEU 
ROAD, LYNDHURST, SO43 7PA 
 

Enquiries to: E-mail:  andy.rogers@nfdc.gov.uk 
Tel: 023 8028 5070 
 

 
Members of the public may listen to this meeting live on the Council’s website at the 
following link:-  
https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=212&MId=7705 
 
 
These papers are also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital 
format 
 

 

1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an 
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified. 
 

3.   APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCE – MINSTEAD LODGE, 
SEAMANS LANE, MINSTEAD, LYNDHURST, SO43 7FT (Pages 3 - 158) 
 
THE RELEVANT PAPERS ARE ATTACHED 
 

 
To: Members of the Sub-Committee:  
 Cllr Steve Clarke 

Cllr Barry Dunning (Substitute) 
Cllr David Harrison 
Cllr Joe Reilly 
  

https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=212&MId=7705


This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – MONDAY 22 AUGUST 2022    

APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE  
MINSTEAD LODGE, SEAMANS LANE, MINSTEAD, LYNDHURST, SO43 7FT 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1    The purpose of the report is to provide the Sub-Committee with information at the 
hearing to determine the application for a new premises licence in respect of Minstead 
Lodge, Seamans Lane, Minstead, SO43 7FT 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1     That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines the application for a new premises  
    licence as provided at Appendix 1, which has been submitted in accordance with  
    section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”). 
 

2.2     Under section 18 of the Act, the Sub-Committee may determine the application as it  
    considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and select from the   
    following options:- 
 

 Grant the application as applied for, subject to conditions which are consistent 
with the operating schedule accompanying the application and modified to such 
extent as the authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives; and any condition which must be included in the licence in accordance 
with the Act;  

 Refuse the application;, 

 Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 
application relates; 

 Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor. 
  

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1    The premises site is the administrative headquarters for the Minstead Trust, a  
charitable organisation that provides support for adults with learning difficulties. It is a 
registered charity (No 1053319) and has been in existence for a number of years. 
 

3.2    The Trust supports a number of sites across the New Forest and beyond, all with the  
same aim, supporting and encouraging adults with learning difficulties to integrate, 
meet friends and to interact with others. Tea rooms, cafes and performance spaces 
provide training in hospitality together with outdoor activities such as the maintenance 
of the gardens at the sites and Furzey Gardens which is open to the general public. 
Sites managed by the Trust are:- 
 

 Hanger Farm Arts Centre-Totton, 

 Furzey Gardens-Minstead, 

 Brickyard Café-Brickworks at Burseldon and 

 Lily and Lime-Portsmouth. 
 

3.3    The site at Hanger Farm has held a premises licence, granted by this Authority, for the  
sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment since 2009. The terminal hour for the   
premises is midnight, however, as with all premises licences granted under the Act, 
this is the latest a premises may operate. Any premises may close earlier, on any 
occasion.   Mr Kyle Maxwell is the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) at Hanger 
Farm and the  application for Minstead Lodge also proposes Mr Maxwell as DPS for 
this premises. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
3.4   Minstead Lodge has previously catered for weddings using Temporary Event Notices  

 (TEN) and, in the past, may have allowed “Bring your own alcohol” (“BYO”), for which  
 no payment is made and is therefore not licensable. Other events held at the site may  
 have also involved music which was exempt from licensing requirements, or  

 conferences where there is no licensable activity. 
 
4. THE APPLICATION 

4.1    The Licensing Authority has received an application for a new premises licence from   
Minstead Trust (“the applicant”),  submitted by Mr Maxwell, the Events and Hospitality 
Manager for the site. The application is attached in Appendix 1.  
 

4.2    The application seeks permission for the following licensable activity:- 

Sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises  
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Sunday-10:00hrs to 23:00hrs and 
Thursday, Friday, and Saturday -10:00hrs to 23:30hrs. 
 
Requested opening hours for the site are: 
All days-09:00hrs to 24:00hrs. 
The site will not be open to the general public, but for events only.  

 
4.3    The application seeks only to provide the sale of alcohol at the site. Any regulated  

entertainment that takes place between 08:00hrs and 23:00hrs is exempt from the 
requirement to be licensed. 

 
4.4    The application states that Minstead Lodge is the administrative headquarters of the  

Minstead Trust and the application seeks to provide the sale of alcohol to guests 
attending functions and weddings, to support the income of the charitable trust. 

 
4.5    Currently, the premises may hold functions, weddings and events under the TEN  

process, which allows up to 20 events with licensable activities per year. These are 
usually applied for and organised by external caterers and are subject to individual 
fees. Only the Police or Environmental Health may object to the grant of a TEN. 

 
4.6    The plans submitted to support the application are provided as Appendix 2 and to  

assist Members, photographs taken at the site by the Licensing Manager are provided 
as Appendix 3. 

 
4.7    A  map indicating the locations of those making representations, Minstead Lodge and  

the nearby pub is provided as Appendix 4. Distances of representation addresses are 
included as Appendix 5. 

 
4.8   The applicant has submitted a number of conditions that would be attached to any  

licence granted for the site. These can be found in the application form (Appendix 1). 
No additional conditions were requested by any of the Responsible Authorities during 
the consultation process. 

 
4.9     Public consultation has been carried out as required under the Act and officers have  

confirmed that the application has been advertised both at the site and in the local 
newspaper. 

 

 

 

4



5. REQUIREMENTS FOR A HEARING 

5.1    The Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to determine the application where  
relevant representations addressing the licensing objectives are made.  These 
objectives being: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 

5.2    The Sub-Committee is referred to statutory guidance issued by the Home Office under  
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 dated April 2018, in particular the sections on 
the  licensing objectives and determining applications. 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-
guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003 
 

5.3    In determining the application, the Licensing Sub-Committee must give appropriate     
         weight to; 
 

 The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

 The relevant representations presented by all parties; 

 Home Office guidance; 

 The Council's own Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 

6. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 

6.1    During the representation period, the Licensing Authority received 34 relevant  
representations from members of the public who live locally and 1 from the Parish 
Council. 

 
6.2    Representations received against the application raise concerns about the implications  
         of granting a licence for the premises and are provided as Appendix 6. 
 
6.3    For the purposes of the Act and promotion of the licensing objectives, those objections  

that are considered relevant and therefore engage the Sub-Committee’s discretion, fall 
into the following areas: 

 

 Concerns by residents about the frequency of events at the premises, (the      
          application currently seeks the licensable activity on all days), 

 The operating hours requested on the application, 

       Noise from guests that have drunk alcohol,  

 Noise from guests who are enjoying the outside areas, 

 Noise from music (however this does not form part of the application), 

 Effects on vulnerable adults on the site. 
 
6.4    Comments on issues such as transport, road layout, highways, impact on water  

courses, sewerage, wild camping, impact on wildlife and animals, whether there is the 
“need” for additional licensed premises or moral objections to alcohol consumption are 
not considered as relevant under the scope of the Act. 

 
6.5    In addition, comments regarding fire safety are not considered as relevant as this is  

regulated under specific fire safety legislation. Fire risk assessments must be in place 
to meet existing legal requirements and obligations on behalf of the trust who own the 
building. 

5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003


 
6.6    There are a large number of similarly worded representations, many of which refer to  

issues outside the scope of this application and may not form part of the determination. 
This also includes the effect of the sale of alcohol in a rural location leading to the risk 
of customers driving under the influence of alcohol. This of course is illegal, however 
there are many licensed premises in the Forest in similar rural settings which are 
licensed for the sale of alcohol and in most cases with more extensive hours. There is 
also a well-established and frequented pub in Minstead. 

 
6.7    Those attending the venue will be aware of its rural location and the fact that they will  

have to make arrangements to travel to and from the site. Some will choose to drive, 
whilst others may be given a lift or travel by taxi. 

 
6.8    All the Responsible Authorities have been consulted, (including NFDC and NPA  

planning departments) and no comments or objections have been received to the 
application. Environmental Health also confirmed that there are no noise complaints 
recorded against the premises and made no comment or objection received during the 
consultation process. 

 
6.9    With regard to planning consents or restrictions, any licence granted does not override   

planning restrictions that may be in place. Licensing and planning are two separate 
regulatory regimes and must be treated as such. Any change of use or other planning 
requirement must be addressed separately, and to the correct authority. 

 
6.10  The Act’s four licensing objectives apply only to the premises and curtilage of a venue  
          and not to the surrounding area. 
 
7. THE HEARING 

7.1    This hearing is governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.  
These Regulations provide that hearings should be held in public unless the Licensing 
Authority considers that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs the public 
interest in the hearing taking place in public. 
 

7.2    The applicant and those parties making representations have been invited to this  
hearing and have been provided with this report and the procedures to be followed at 
the hearing. 
 

7.3    The applicant and those who have made relevant representations are entitled to  
address the Sub-Committee and to ask questions of the other party, with the consent 
of the Sub-Committee.  
 

8. RIGHT OF APPEAL 

8.1     It should be noted that the applicant and those who have made relevant  
representations may appeal the decision made by the Licensing Sub-Committee to the 
Magistrates’ Court. The appeal must be lodged with the Magistrates’ Court within 21 
days of the notification of the decision. 
 

8.2     In the event of an appeal being lodged, the decision made by the Licensing Sub- 
Committee remains valid until any appeal is heard and the decision made by the 
Magistrates’ Court 
 

9. CRIME & DISORDER, ENVIRONMENTAL, EQUALITY & DIVERSITY AND  DATA 
PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 

9.1   None 

6



 

10. APPENDICES 

Appendix 1- Application form 
Appendix 2- Application site plan  
Appendix 3- Photographs of the site 
Appendix 4- Location plan indicating locations of representations 
Appendix 5- Distance of representations from premises 
Appendix 6- Representations submitted 

 

For further information contact:  

Christa Ferguson 
Licensing Manager 
023 8028 5588 
Christa.ferguson@nfdc.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers:   

NFDC Licensing Policy 

Statutory guidance issued under S182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



,· 

r A :r f 

Page 1 

CD 
G 2. 0 5 

3 · 55 

(i) 

•:\ ., . 
. · .. :? 

...... 

;(-11-,;a.z._l ·l.,: 

.57.Jo 
·1. B 

� 

. "'

-�;. /
........ ,._ 
"/�} 

.y ···:-" I' 
,, 

>;· 

/�._/' C} • C: 

" '··.,. -<- (' -Q
:-.t \� \'.

\ ,_,,

(_'I .. 

\ 

, 

•• 

I ; ·,,., .. ··••? 

Q ., 

"'-;:) 

in.rte � 

• ' 
t 

,' 

)-_ 

• 
0 

n' 

, 
,_ • • 

0 

� . 
:. ' 

Q 

• 
fl ••1,,'\ . ;.:__.,.. ,, ,-. :, 

. '!9-';:,..� ' () 

·\- .:r.,
,.:- .. ' 

� 

· .:,
-- . 

') 
;, 

. -.
• -�J --. 

�.h' 
. '2-1 

·-

. ·;:, -

i\ � ';J y:j �-::. 
")• - . . 

1 ._,,
�r--

i1U II 
.. l·t!- � 

----. 
(.

) ,::�\.:_, ._ 
Q 

APPENDIX 2

39



40



41



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 

 

         

SIDE ENTRANCE FACING BLADE GARDEN                          FRONT OF THE LODGE   

VIEW FROM FRONT OF THE LODGE LOOKING TOWARDS BROCK FARM 

43



APPENDIX 3 

 

  

TURKEY OAK FIELD 

 

INSIDE THE BUILDING 

 

CONGLETON ROOM                                                                LONG HALL 

                         

44



APPENDIX 3 

 

 

PARNELL ROOM 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



APPEN
D

IX 4

47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5 
MINSTEAD LODGE REPRESENTATIONS AND APPROXIMATE DISTANCES FROM PROPOSED PREMISES 

1 
 

Rep 
no 

name address Distance from 
Minstead 
Lodge 

1 Mr Desmond 
Thomas 

Applethwaite, SO43 7FR 420m 

2 Mr Juilian Pearson 6 Congleton Close, Minstead, SO43 7GS 460m 

3 Mr David Morris South Lodge, Football Green, Minstead, Hampshire 
SO43 7FR 

270m 

4 Mr Andrew McGhee Cauldrons, Bull Lane, Minstead, Lyndhurst, SO43 7FS 300m 

5 Mrs Anna Cummin Williams’s Farm, Minstead. SO43 7FP 800m 

6 Mr Stephen Rose Beaufield, Lyndhurst Road, Minstead, SO43 7FP 720m 

7 Mr Richard Taylor Fylingdale, Minstead. SO43 7HA 900m 

8 Mrs Imogen Taylor North lodge, London Minstead. Minstead, Lyndhurst, 
SO43 7FT 

260m 

9 Mr Peter GF Dibben Ivy Cottage Farm, Minstead, Lyndhurst, SO43 7FY 560m 

10 Mr and Mrs Sams-
Dodd 

Greenbrae, Lyndhurst Road, Minstead, SO43 7FX 700m 

11 Mrs Patricia Hobbs Perry’s Farm, London Minstead, Lyndhurst, SO43 7FT 360m 

12 Mrs Vicki Salmon 
and Mr John Scott 

Hartings, Seamans Lane, Minstead 660m 

13 Minstead Parish 
Council 

Barry Mollett 
 

- 

14 Mr and Mrs 
Bakewell 

Field House, Football Green, Minstead, SO43 7FR 300m 

15 Mr Alan Ferguson Hurdles, Lyndhurst Rd, Minstead, Lyndhurst SO43 7FX 650m 

16 Mrs Celia Stanwyck 
 

Brock Farm, Football Green, Minstead, SO43 7FR 
 

200m 

17 Mr and Mrs Simon 
Fisher 

Woodman Cottage, Manor Park, Minstead, SO43 7FY 680m 

18 Mr Darren 
McCullough 

Park gate Cottage, Minstead, SO43 7FY 460m 

19 Mr and Mrs Tupper Suters Cottage, London Minstead 520m 

20 Mr Peter Tyrrell 
 

Windrush 
Seamans Lane 
Minstead 
Lyndhurst 
SO43 7FU 

630m 

21 Mr David G O Brown Two Pictures, London Minstead, Lyndhurst SO34 7FT 240m 

22 Mr and Mrs Marston Barneys, Football Green, Minstead SO43  370m 

23 Mr and Mrs Frost Hunters Brook, Lyndhurst Road, Minstead, SO43 7FX 630m 

24 Mrs P Cawte and Mr 
B Brown 

Rowan Cottage, Football Green, Minstead, SO43 7FR 390m 

25 Mrs Joanne 
Vaughan 

Willliams Hill House, Mill Lane, Minstead, SO43 7FP 920m 

26 Mr Matthew Hurst Muffins, Woodside  Minstead, SO43 7GB 1.38km 

27 Mrs Hilary Bates Wisteria Cottage, Minstead, SO43 7FX 540m 

28 Mr Denis Bates Wisteria Cottage, Minstead, SO43 7FX 540m 

29 Mrs Naomi Jayne 
Harte 

Merrie Orchard, Football Green, Minstead, SO43 7FR 470m 

30 Miss Sophie-Jane 
Stanwyck 

Brownlow Court, 22 Marlborough Road, Bournemouth, 
BH4 8DQ 

out of area 

31 Mr Tasgin Hussein 
and Ms Tracey 
Kates 

Wheatleys, Football Green, Minstead, Hampshire, SO43 
7FQ 

660m 

32 Ms Michelle 
Kennedy 

Sungate, Football Green, Minstead, Hampshire, SO43 
7FQ 

700m 

33 Mr David Donaldson 8 Congleton Close, Minstead, SO43 7GS 460m 

34 Mr Christopher Boon Woodside House, Woodside, Minstead, SO43 7GB 1.44k 

35 Mrs Lynda Glover North Lodge, Lyndhurst Road, Minstead, SO43 7FY 590m 

 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
v02 

Licensing Act 2003 

Representation form and guidance-Other persons 

Under the Licensing Act 2003 objections can be raised against an application for a 
new premises licence or a variation of an existing licence. 
The term used in the 2003 Act, regulations, and associated guidance is not 
“objections” but “representations”. 
All representations must be relevant to at least one of the licensing objectives:- 

• the prevention of crime and disorder
• public safety
• the prevention of public nuisance
• the protection of children from harm

Once an application for a premises licence has been accepted by the licensing 
authority, responsible authorities and other persons have 28 days starting on the day 
after the application is accepted to make representations. 

Responsible authorities are the bodies that must be fully notified of applications and 
who are entitled to make representations to the licensing authority in relation to the 
application for the grant, variation or review of a premises licence. 
Responsible Authorities are:- 
• Licensing Authority
• Police
• Environmental Protection
• Trading Standards
• Local Safeguarding Children’s Board
• Health & Safety
• Fire & Rescue Service
• Local Planning Authority
• Maritime & Coastguard Agency (if applicable)
• Public Health

As well as responsible authorities, any “other person” can make representations. 
It is also possible for a person to request that a representative makes a representation 
on their behalf – for example, a Member of Parliament or a local ward or parish 
councillor. 
In addition to being relevant, representations must not be vexatious or frivolous and 
can be rejected on this basis.  

If a licensing authority decides that representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing 
to consider them. The need for a hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of 

Date that this 
representation form 

must be submitted by 

22.7.22 

APPENDIX 6

51



 

2 
v02 
 

the licensing authority, the applicant and all of the persons/agencies making relevant 
representations. 
 
In determining an application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives, in the 
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 
weight to: 

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 
• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 

parties; 
• Statutory Guidance; 
• its own statement of licensing policy. 

 
Representations must be made in writing and emailed or posted to Licensing Services. 
They may be amplified at the hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional points, 
which are not referred to in the original representation received during the 28 day 
period may not be referred to at the hearing. However if there are any additional 
documents that refer to the original matters that you wish to be included, these must 
be sent to Licensing Services at least 5 days before the hearing. 
 
Planning and other issues 
 
Unfortunately representations that concern traffic or parking cannot be accepted. This 
is because the licence holder cannot be held responsible for the use of the public 
highway outside of the premises. The licensing regime is separate from other local 
government functions including planning. If a premises licence is granted for the 
building this will not exempt the licence holder from having to obtain the necessary 
planning permission. We are therefore unable to accept representations that simply 
refer to the need for planning permission or refer to parking or an increase in traffic 
movements. These are issues that are considered when planning permission to use a 
building for an activity is considered. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
It is recommended that representations are made on the following form. 
 

52



 

3 
v02 
 

Representation form for other persons 
 
Full name  Desmond Thomas 

 
Title Mr 

Home address 
 

Applethwaite, SO43 7FR 

Email address  
 

Phone number  
 

 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

 
Seaman’s Lane Minstead SO43 7F 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

(✓) 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

✓ This appears to be an unusual application which, 
requires an unusual set of 
objections/representations. 
I may have missed something, but I could find no 
reference on the Public Register of Licences to 
the possession, by Minstead Lodge, of an 
existing licence to supply alcohol.   
 
If this assessment is correct and the information 
contained in the advertisement found 
at  Minstead Lodge Wedding Venue Lyndhurst, 
Hampshire | hitched.co.uk is also correct, it 
would appears that, that for a number of years, 
the proprietors of Minstead Lodge have been 
supplying alcohol without the required licence. 
 
NFDC planning records indicate that in 1976 the 
NFDC approved a change of use from 
Hotel/Wedding Venue to Residential Training 
College.  If correct the above advertisement also 
indicates that the proprietors may be in breach of 
planning regulations and by implication; 
 
Building regulations -appropriate to use 
Fire regulations – applicable to use  
Health a safety regulation – applicable to staff, 
customers and the general public 

53

https://www.hitched.co.uk/wedding-venues/minstead-lodge_7796.htm
https://www.hitched.co.uk/wedding-venues/minstead-lodge_7796.htm


 

4 
v02 
 

NFDC and NFPA policy - in relation noise, light 
and effluent pollution (NFDC records suggest 
that that the sewage treatment works was 
installed in 1988 and by implication appropriate, 
at that time, to the requirements of a Residential 
Training College. 
 
In the absence of appropriate hotel 
accommodation – which would require a change 
of use and compliance with relevant regulations, 
guests, many of whom will, by the very nature of 
the event outline in the application, having 
consumed alcohol, will be obliged to leave the 
venue, drive down very narrow lanes to 
alternative accommodation.   
 
In these circumstances the NFDC is invited to 
consider the degree to which the granting of a 
licence may, in addition to increasing the 
possibility of drink driving -public disorder, also 
place the licensing authority at risk, for example 
in case of a fatal fire, of prosecution for failure to 
discharge a duty to protect the public.       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public safety ✓ Minstead Lodge is situated on top a hill, possibly 
the highest point in the area. Ground conditions 
are silt overlaying clay – rain drains quickly 
through the silt and quickly washes downhill into 
two adjacent water courses; one of which run 
through Brock Farm and the other alongside 
Football Green Road.. 
 
 There are two entrances to the lodge; one in 
Seamans Lane and the second in Football 
Green Road.   As the name suggests, Seamans 
Lane is a narrow lane.  Football Green Road is 
equally if not narrower than Seamans Lane.  
Both may be unsuitable for an increase in traffic 

54



 

5 
v02 
 

and use by heavy goods vehicles.  Indeed, 
where not protected by Dragon’s teeth, the use 
by large goods vehicles delivering goods to 
Minstead Lodge appears to have contributed to 
erosion of verges of Foot Ball Green Road.    
 
In these circumstances it may not be 
unreasonable to ask the licencing authority to 
consider the degree to which, in addition to the 
issues outline in the previous section, the lack of 
appropriate infrastructure may impact public 
safety and as such provide legitimate grounds 
for objection.  The following may be of particular 
concern  
 
Road safety (related to both people and 
animals).  It may be legitimate, in the absence of 
roads which are capable of carrying a significant 
increase in both cars and heavy goods vehicles 
and given the added complication of free-range 
horses and cattle, to point to an increased risk 
created by the granting of a licence which, in the 
absence of hotel accommodation, may lead to a 
significant increase in risks to public safety 
associated with driving whilst impaired by 
alcohol.   
 
These risks may be compounded by the narrow 
nature of local roads along which people who 
having consumed alcohol, may be forced to 
drive, from what is a remote location, to 
alternative accommodation.   
 
Pollution 
 
In the absence of a private sewage treatment 
works which meets current standards 
appropriate to use (as previously stated NFDC 
records suggest that the current system was 
installed in 1988)       
    
Or  
 
Connection to public sewer network (I am told 
the village treatment works in currently at if not 
beyond capacity)  
 
The licensing authority may consider objections 
on grounds of, the risks to public safety, 
particularly to children who play in local water 

55



 

6 
v02 
 

courses, arising from increased discharge of 
sewage and other pollutants arising from a want 
of appropriate sewage infrastructure.     
 
These concerns may be compounded by the 
limits on the capacity of the local water supply.  
In some areas the water pressure is so low 
properties require pumps and storage facilities.  
In these circumstances any significant increase 
in demand may reduce the capacity of the whole 
system to process waste, which in turn may 
result in an indirect increase to public safety and 
create a public nuisance.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

✓  
The authority is invited to consider the degree to 
which all of the issues outlined in the previous 
sections provide legitimate grounds, for 
objections on grounds of public nuisance 
including those related to health issues. 
 
The authority also is invited to consider the 
degree to which the following may be regarded 
as legitimates reasons for objecting to the 
granting or if already in existence, variation of 
licence. 
 
The Lodge is situated on top of a hill which is 
possibly the highest point in the village. 
 
Access is gained through very narrow lanes. 
 
These lanes pass through and or may be 
adjacent to areas of outstanding natural beauty 
and Sites of Special Scientific Interest. 
 
The topography creates a situation which will 
amplify noise and light pollution and by 
implication the resulting public nuisance.  
 

56



 

7 
v02 
 

On occasion we have already experienced noise 
pollution arising from celebration at the lodge.  
We believed that these events celebrated the 
work of the Trust, which we supported, rather 
than an, apparently unlicenced, commercial 
undertaking and as a result were willing to 
tolerate the limited nature of the nuisance.   
 
In our view a significant increase in the number 
of events together with an increase in the length 
– in effect 1000hrs to midnight (2330hs followed 
by 30 minutes drinking up time) would, given the 
topography and nature of the areas, create a 
significant public nuisance in terms of: 
 
Direct noise pollution arising from events, which, 
given previous events, will include live and other 
forms of music.  During the summer months, the 
public nuisance resulting from events which may 
take place every weekend and some weekdays, 
my have a significant impact on the quality of life 
and health of all who live in the local area.  
 
Indirect noise pollution arising from the slamming 
of car doors coupled with a significant increase 
in traffic noise as customers, some of whom will 
have consumed significant quantities of alcohol 
seek leave the venue via very narrow roads may 
amply the above.   
  
Pollution resulting, for example from wild 
camping as customers, seeking to avoid 
prosecution for drunk driving, park up and camp 
for example in areas of Special Scientific Interest 
(it may be worth noting recent concern resulting 
from the activities of young people involved in 
the Duke of Edinburgh scheme)   
 
Whilst light pollution may have less direct impact 
upon people’s lives, as a potential breach of 
National Park Policy it may also be regarded as 
a public nuisance, for example in terms of its 
impact on wildlife and activities which require a 
reduction in light pollution.  
 
Public nuisance may also extend to an increase 
in collisions involving Forest Ponies, other 
livestock and the resulting impact on 
Commoners.      
 

57



 

8 
v02 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Protection of 
children from harm 

✓  
The authority also is invited to consider the 
degree to which in the absence of appropriate 
planning consents and compliance with; 
 
Building and electrical regulations – in relation to 
buildings use by children 
 
Fire regulations – in relation to buildings used by 
children 
 
Provision of facilities for the children of 
customers attendings events    
 
. Prevention of pollution which may have an 
adverse effect on the health of children who may 
paddle and play in local water courses   
 
Represent legitimate reasons to object to the 
granting of the licence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 
In my view the applicant should take the following action; 
 
Prior to making application for a licence to sell alcohol, make application to the 
planning authority for change of use – from Residential Training College to Hotel 

58



 

9 
v02 
 

and Wedding Venue and in the course of so doing provide evidence of compliance 
with all relevant building and other regulations.   
 
The granting of a change of use and by implication compliance with all relevant 
regulations would, in my view, provided a firm foundation on which to make an 
application.   
 
Based on the available information the authority is invited to consider the degree to 
which the applicant is attempting to circumvent planning policies by obtaining a 
licence for a premises which may, for a number of years has conducted an 
unlicenced business in premises which may, in addition to being unsuitable, may 
represent a significant risk to customers and the public.  
 
In these circumstances, in the absence of evidence showing that this is not the 
case, the authority is invited to consider the degree to which the granting of a 
licence may place the authority at risk of failing to discharge a public duty.      
 
In the event that the applicant has obtained the relevant consents for a change of 
use and the application is for a variation of an existing licence; 
 

1. Given the topography of the area, provide details of the actions designed to 
prevent significant noise pollution and contingent public nuisance. 

 
2. Provide the National Park Authority and NFDC with evidence of compliance 

with their policies - in particular that related to light pollution  
 

3. Ensure that their sewage treatment works complies with current discharge 
standards or link the lodge to the village sewer network 

 
4. Provide the NFDC, Parish Council with evidence that the lodge will pay for 

any required upgrade in the, water supply, electricity supply, the capacity of 
the phone network, pay for any damage or erosion created by goods 
vehicles delivering alcohol and other goods to the lodge 

 
5. Explain to all interested parties how, in the absence of adequate roads and 

other infrastructure, the applicant may prevent a significant increase in risks 
to public safety and avoid creating a significant public nuisance,     

 
  
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



 

10 
v02 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
If you do make a representation, you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? Yes    

 
Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

Please initial 
 

 
 
Signature date 
 

 
 

11.7.22 

 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
 
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road 
Lyndhurst 
SO43 7PA 
 
Phone: 023 8028 5505 
 
 

60

https://newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice


61



62



63



64



65



66



 

1 
v02 
 

 

 
Representation form for other persons 

 
Full name  Andrew McGhee 

 
Title Mr 

Home address 
 

Cauldrons, Bull Lane, Minstead, Lyndhurst, SO43 7FS 

Email address  
 

Phone number  
 

 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

 
London Minstead, Minstead, SO43 
7FT 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

() 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public safety   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



 

2 
v02 
 

 
 
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

√ I believe the application for a licence and change 
of use for the venue to parties, weddings , 
conferences etc will , if used 7 days a week and 
for the full extent of the licence , create a public 
nuisance for local residents. I believe the change 
of venue and the fact that the Lodge wishes to 
have a licence is fine. However I believe the 
duration which is practically unlimited could 
cause disruption and disturbance. The level of 
increased traffic may also be an issue given the 
secluded nature of the property and the 
narrowness of the lanes leading to the venue. 
By all means change use and have a licence but 
limit in some way the disruption to local 
residents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Protection of 
children from harm 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 

68



 

3 
v02 
 

Reduce the hours of the licence or limit the aggregate number of weddings 
and conferences etc ie no music after say 22:00 or ensure it is indoors.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? Yes   No 

 
Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

Please initial 
 

 

 
 
Signature date 
 

 
 

12 July 22 

 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
 
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 

1 
v02 
 

 
Representation form for other persons 

 
Full name  Imogen Taylor 

 
Title Mrs 

Home address 
 

North lodge, London Minstead. Minstead, Lyndhurst, SO43 
7FT 

Email address  
Phone number  

 
 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

 
Seamans Lane, Minstead, SO43 7FT 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

() 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public safety   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80



 

2 
v02 
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

  
 
The sale of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises will inevitably cause disturbance for 
the surrounding areas, this in turn would affect 
the calm and peaceful environment we currently 
have and as a result of enhanced noise and 
disturbance near us. Therefore, we are 
concerned about not being able to enjoy our 
gardens the way we should and also we don’t 
want it to potentially disturb our sleep with 
events likely to be going on into the night.  
 
We are also concerned about individuals who 
have had a few too many coming down to the 
end of our road where we live, waiting for taxi’s 
causing a nuisance when we have young 
children in our home. 
 
Where we are currently located right by a cattle 
grid to Minstead Lodge (their main entrance), we 
don’t want increased traffic on this road, 
especially late at night on what could potentially 
be every weekend, as this would mean constant 
cars, who are often going too fast, going over 
the cattle grid which is already too loud as it is. 
 
 

Protection of 
children from harm 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 
 
 
 
 

81



 

3 
v02 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? Yes   

 
Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

Please initial 
 

 
Signature date 

 
 

11/7/22 

 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
 
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road 
Lyndhurst 
SO43 7PA Phone: 023 8028 5505 
 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



From:
To: Licensing e-mail address
Subject: Re: Application: Grant of Premises Licence (S17) Ref: LICPR/22/12853 - Minstead Lodge
Date: 18 July 2022 16:09:01

You don't often get email from minsteadclerk@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

Dear Christa,

Just a clarification on our previous response, we would appreciate this version of words being used.

Minstead Parish Council discussed this application at the parish council meeting on 4th July, we are responding
on behalf of nearby parishioners and express our concerns about the possible public nuisance caused by noise
from planned functions. Given previous experience from the limited licences granted for adhoc events we are
concerned that a licence for all day, every day sale of alcohol could cause public noise nuisance to surrounding
rural properties. We are also concerned that these people have not been effectively consulted or advised of the
plans.

Regards,

Barry

Barry Mollett
Clerk and RFO to Minstead Parish Council
Tel
Email 

This email is intended solely for the person or organisation to whom it is addressed. If you have received this email in
error please notify us as soon as possible (( 07847 327162 or email minsteadclerk@gmail.com). Minstead Parish
Council cannot accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this message as it has been transmitted
over a public network. We do our best to guard against viruses. If you get a virus, we cannot accept liability for any
damage. You should carry out your own virus check before you open attachments.

On Mon, 18 Jul 2022 at 14:47, Barry Mollett > wrote:
Dear Christa,

Minstead Parish Council discussed this application at the parish council meeting on 4th July, we are
responding on behalf of nearby parishioners and express our concerns about the possible public nuisance
caused by noise from planned functions. Given previous experience from the limited licences granted for
adhoc events we are concerned that a licence for all day, every day events will cause public noise nuisance to
surrounding rural properties. We are also concerned that these people have not been effectively consulted or
advised of the plans.

Regards,

Barry

Barry Mollett
Clerk and RFO to Minstead Parish Council
Tel 
Email 

This email is intended solely for the person or organisation to whom it is addressed. If you have received this email in
error please notify us as soon as possible (( 07847 327162 or email minsteadclerk@gmail.com). Minstead Parish
Council cannot accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this message as it has been transmitted
over a public network. We do our best to guard against viruses. If you get a virus, we cannot accept liability for any
damage. You should carry out your own virus check before you open attachments.

92

https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
mailto:minsteadclerk@gmail.com
mailto:minsteadclerk@gmail.com


93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



 

Representation form for other persons 

 

Full name  

Celia Irene Stanwyck 

Title 

Mrs 

Home address 

Brock Farm, Football Green, Minstead, SO43 7FR 

Email address 

xxxxxxxxxx 

Phone number 

xxxxxxxx 

Name of premises you wish to make a representation about 

Minstead Lodge 

Address of premises you wish to make a representation about 

Seaman’s Lane, Minstead. 

Which of the four licensing objectives does your representation relate to? 

Please add full details of your concerns regarding the application and include 
any evidence to support your representation. 

Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime and disorder 

Minstead Trust is a Charity concerned with caring and training adults with learning 
disabilities.  

Minstead Lodge is a Residential College and Day Training Centre owned by 
Minstead Trust.  

I feel that having alcohol available on the premises is inappropriate given the nature 
of the Trust’s work. 

My concerns are for the safety and wellbeing of the students - there will be unknown 
members of the public drinking alcohol and mixing with vulnerable people in and 
around the manor house, gardens, workshops and grounds. 

 

Public safety 

101



Again I am concerned for the students at the Lodge but, also, the residents and 
Forest animals at risk from extra traffic and late night driving along the village roads. 

I have also been made aware of the potential high fire risk of the property itself. I 
believe that the main reception rooms are wood panelled and the main staircase is 
wood which is potentially very worrying. Celebration events with alcohol and candles.  

Prevention of public nuisance 

The siting of the Lodge on the top of a hill means that the noise from events - any 
event - carries a long way. 

Many residents and properties are effected by this noise.  

My family has lived here for over 20 years and have in the past tolerated the 
occasional noisy celebration in the interest of neighbourly harmony and appreciation 
of what Minstead Trust stands for. 

This application for a 7 day a week 10 am - 10 or 10.30 pm license is just 
unacceptable.  

Recently, 7th. May, ’22, having had a full day of shrieking children, shouting, 
cheering, clapping and music thumping away, I finally rang the Lodge around 10.30 
pm to complain - needless to say no one picked up the phone so we just had to wait 
it out until the revellers went home. Over 12 hours of stress and upset - noise and 
music booming out on a beautiful day and evening when we all wanted to relax and 
enjoy our homes and gardens. 

This invasion into and the spoiling of the Lodge’s neighbours’ lives - making them 
shut their doors and windows to muffle the row and preventing them from enjoying 
their own gardens with friends in peace is simply not fair.  

Potentially, this could be happening 7 days a week.  

Protection of children from harm 

I believe I am right in saying that the students at Minstead Lodge are all over 18 
years old but, they do have learning disabilities which I understand makes them still 
vulnerable.  

My concerns are as above - potential situations with members of the public who 
have been drinking. 

Also, the disruption to their lives and the all invasive noise.  

Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to the 
application which would alleviate your concerns? 

If yes – please give details below 

 

102



No - I believe that the very nature of Minstead Trust’s purpose is in conflict with the 
opening of their facilities to un-vetted members of the public who will have, in many 
cases been drinking to excess. 

Even if the suggestions is that events will be held inside - there is no air-conditioning 
in the Lodge, and their advertising highlights the gardens and grounds - the doors 
will be opened and immediately, the revellers and noise will spill outside. 

If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 

 

Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? 

Yes    

Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a public document at a 
hearing,  

(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and signatures will be 
redacted) 

 

    Please initial 

 

Signature 

date 

 

 

 

17th., JULY, 2022 

 

Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 

newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  

 

 

Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  

 

103



 

1 
v02 
 

 

Representation form for other persons 
 
Full name  Simon and Vicky Fisher 

 
Title Mr & 

Mrs 
Home address 
 

Woodman Cottage, Manor Park, Minstead, SO43 7FY 

Email address  
 

Phone number  
 

 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

Minstead Lodge Seamans Lane 
Minstead SO43 7FT 
 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

(✓) 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

Yes As a wedding Venue, large weddings can be 
300 people. So about 150 cars and associated 
catering lorries. From the application possibly 
daily even two on one day. 
WE already get traffic jams in the small single 
track lanes in Minstead. People get very angry 
when 50 cars meet and are unable to clear the 
road, disorder will happen. Damage to cars and 
legally parked cars in the area. Abuse of 
residents. 
We intend to buy a house just along the road 
from Minstead Lodge and are very concerned. 
 
 

Public safety   
There are NO pedestrian walkways on any of 
the access roads. As per government policy we 
are all walking along the single-track road with 
no verge even to safely get off to allow a car or 
lorry to pass. 
Pedestrians will be injured directly because of 
the increased traffic 
 
 

104



 

2 
v02 
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

  
Noise will be excessive and intrusive on the 
quiet forest village. 
 

Protection of 
children from harm 

 We are not certain of the ages of the current 
residents, but we know that they have special 
needs and learning disabilities. Whilst they may 
not be under the age of 18 , some will be 
vunerable young adults. We understand that the 
activities provided at the Lodge for these people 
will continue during the daytime, and hence 
during some of the hours for which the alcohol 
licence is applied. Further we understand that 
some of these vunerable people will remain 
resident in nearby housing on the Lodge's 
premises. Weddings and other events at which 
alcohol is consumed would be wholly 
inappropriate in the vicinity of such people, and 
would not be conducive to their health and 
wellbeing . 
 
 

 
Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 
We appreciate the Trust's need to generate income, but their activities must 
be in harmony with their neighbours, the village of Minstead and the 
surrounding area 
We could agree to a limited number of weddings and events , with an alcohol 
licence limited to three days a week, finishing at 9pm, with "drinking up" 
time 
limited to 15 minutes 
Before an alcohol licence is granted, we would think that you, as the 
Licensing Authority, would want to make sure that the premises were 
suitable 
as a weddings and events venue. We suggest that the application is 
withdrawn until the Trust has obtained all requisite planning permissions , 
building regulation consents, and fire and health and safety permissions for 
the Lodge as a building suitable for these purposes . 
 

 
 
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? Yes   No 

 

105



 

3 
v02 
 

Please circle 
I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

 

 
 
Signature date 
 

 
 

19th July 

 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
 
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road 
Lyndhurst 
SO43 7PA 
 
Phone: 023 8028 5505 
 
 

106

https://newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice


 

1 
v02 
 

 

 
Representation form for other persons 

 
Full name   

Darren McCullough 
Title Mr 

Home address 
 

Park gate Cottage, Minstead, SO43 7FY 

Email address  
Phone number  

 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

Minstead Lodge 
 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

Seaman’s Lane, Minstead, SO43 7FT 
 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

(✓) 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

  
 
 
 
 

Public safety   
 
 
 
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

✓  
The application is in a very quiet unspoilt rural 
area of the national park very close to where we 
live, and I believe that granting this licence will 
disrupt the tranquillity significantly throughout the 
day and late into the evening. 
A Party destination hosting weddings and 
celebrations - potentially seven days per week, 
would greatly impact on local resident’s quiet 
enjoyment of their own properties.  
Noise travels a significant distance in a rural 
area and we have already been disturbed by 
events at the venue. 
 
 
 

107



 

2 
v02 
 

 
 

Protection of 
children from harm 

  
 
 
 

 
Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 
 
 

 
 
 
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing?    No 

 
Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

 

 
 
Signature date 
 
 

 

19.07.2022 

 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
 
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road 
Lyndhurst 
SO43 7PA  
Phone: 023 8028 550 

108

https://newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice


109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



 

1 
v02 
 

 

 
Representation form for other persons 

 
Full name  Naomi Jayne Harte 

 
Title Mrs 

Home address 
 

Merrie Orchard, Football Green, Minstead, SO43 7FR 

Email address  
 

Phone number  
 

 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge, Football Green, 
Minstead 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

(✔) 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

  
 
Concerns of alcohol related disorder 
 

Public safety   
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

  
 
I strongly object to this application as a nuisance 
to the local residents and village. Please see 
separate sheet. 
 

Protection of 
children from harm 

  
 
 

 
Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 
No 
 

141



 

2 
v02 
 

 
Full details of my concerns: 
 
Seaman’s Lane and Football Green are single-carriageway ‘roads’ and often 
blocked by ponies and cows and as such are manifestly unsuitable for the 
levels of traffic which would be associated with this change of use. As a quiet 
backwater of the Forest, bringing in parties, who understandably would want 
to enthusiastically celebrate the wedding they are attending, it seems a totally 
inappropriate use of what has, to date, been a location for quiet, charitable 
work. 
This change of use has already impacted the neighbourhood with late night 
noise and disturbance which is wholly unacceptable. The Lodge website is 
already advertising itself as available for ‘drinks receptions’, this is prior to 
actually obtaining an alcohol license. Change of use to an alcohol serving 
venue will completely change the character and social compliance of the 
Lodge. Alcohol allowance undoubtedly will attract a wider market and later 
partying, more traffic and undeniably more noise. All of the roads surrounding 
the Lodge are completely unlit and party/wedding guests leaving in cars or 
minibuses in the dark will be a danger to not only the commoning  stock but 
also locals returning home or walking on summer evenings. 
The Lodge residents have been very much part of the community and it is a 
great shame to learn that they are now being relocated in order to trade as a 
full-time wedding and conference venue.  
 
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? Yes   No 

Yes 
Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

 

 
Signature date 

 21.07.22 
 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road Lyndhurst SO43 7PA 
 

142

https://newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice


 

1 
v02 
 

 

 
Representation form for other persons 

 
Full name  Sophie-Jane Stanwyck 

 
Title Miss 

Home address 
 

Brownlow Court, 22 Marlborough Road, Bournemouth, BH4 
8DQ 

Email address  
Phone number  

 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

Minstead Lodge 
Seaman’s Lane 
Minstead 
SO43 7FT 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

(✓) 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

  
 

Public safety ✓ The safety of the local residents, their families 
and the new forest animals will be impacted. The 
increased traffic, of individuals not accustomed 
to navigating country roads and after drinking 
alcohol (even the morning after there can still be 
alcohol in the system) there are likely to be 
many more accidents and fatalities. 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

✓  
The events that have been held already at the 
Trust have been a nuisance and greatly 
impacted on the residents living near-by. The 
music can be heard up until 11pm through shut 
doors and windows. It disturbed the ability for 
me to complete my work and sleep. 

Protection of 
children from harm 

✓ I have great concerns over the mixing of any the 
vulnerable individuals supported by the Trust 
with members of the public who have undergone 
no form of DBS check and will be most likely be 
under the influence of alcohol. I believe it is 
completely inappropriate and extremely 
dangerous. 

 

143



 

2 
v02 
 

Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 
Working with the residents of Minstead itself, to develop more appropriate ways of 
generating income to support the Trust. There is a great wealth of knowledge, 
expertise and experience in Minstead. This has not been sought by the Trust staff 
(even when offered) to develop alternatives to what they are planning. I am certain 
alternative resolutions which would better support the individuals at the Trust can 
be found if we collaborate on this issue. 
 

 
 
 
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? Yes   No 

 
Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

Please initial 
 

 

 
Signature date 
 
 

 

21.07.2022 

 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
 
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road 
Lyndhurst 
SO43 7PA 
 
Phone: 023 8028 5505 
 
 

144

https://newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice


 

1 
v02 
 

 

 
Representation form for other persons 

 
Full name   

Tasgin Hussein and Tracey Vanda Kates 
Title Mr 

Home address 
 

Wheatleys, Football Green, Minstead, Hampshire, SO43 7FQ 

Email address  
Phone number  

 
Name of premises you wish to make 
a representation about 

 
Minstead Lodge 
 

Address of premises you wish to 
make a representation about 

 
Seaman Lane, Minstead, SO43 7FT 
 

 
Which of the four 
licensing objectives 
does your 
representation relate 
to? 

(✓) 
Tick  

Please add full details of your concerns 
regarding the application and include any 
evidence to support your representation. 
 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

Prevention of crime 
and disorder 

  
 
 
 

Public safety   
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

✓  
I understand from a meeting with 
representatives from the trust that there could be 
multiple, celebrations and conferences 
throughout the year, hence the Trusts 
application for an alcohol premises 
licence.Although the weddings will be conducted 
inside the Lodge building, these will and have in 
the past split outside and we have heard these 
in the past, bearing in mind these were 
supposedly held inside. We moved to this area 
specifically for the peace and quiet that our 
address provides and are now concerned that 
the consequent disturbance will affect the 
use/peace and quiet and thus enjoyment of our 
homes and gardens and the inevitable increase 
in road traffic levels, especially when people are 
leaving the venue late at night. Additional to this 
the risk of possible increase to animal deaths 
with increased traffic late at night when animals 

145



 

2 
v02 
 

are at their most docile state and tend to stand in 
the roads. 
 

Protection of 
children from harm 

  
 

 
Are there any steps or conditions which the applicant could take or add to 
the application which would alleviate your concerns? 
If yes – please give details below 
 

 
 
 
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting where the application will be considered, together with any 
subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Will you be prepared to attending a hearing? Yes   No 

 
Please circle 

I acknowledge that my representation will form part of a 
public document at a hearing,  
(personal telephone numbers, email addresses and 
signatures will be redacted) 
 

Please initial 

 
 
Signature date 
 

 
 

21/07/2022 

 
Licensing Services privacy notice can be viewed on the Council’s website at 
newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice  
 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets / supporting 
information to : licensing@nfdc.gov.uk or post to  
 
Licensing Manager 
Licensing Services 
Appletree Court 
Beaulieu Road 
Lyndhurst 
SO43 7PA 
 
Phone: 023 8028 5505 
 

146

https://newforest.gov.uk/article/1716/Licensing-Services-privacy-notice


147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158


	Agenda
	3 Application for new Premises Licence Report
	Appendix 1 Application form_Redacted
	Appendix 2 Application site plans
	Appendix 3 photograghs of site
	Appendix 4 location of reps
	Appendix 5 Reps and distances from premises
	Appendix 6 all reps_Redacted - 28.07.22
	1 Thomas rep
	2 Pearson rep
	3 Morris rep
	4 McGhee rep
	5 Cummin rep
	6 Rose rep
	7 Richard Taylor rep
	8 Imogen Taylor rep
	9 Dibben Rep
	10 J&F Sams-Dodd
	11 Hobbs rep
	12 Salmon and Scott rep
	13 Minstead PC rep
	14 Bakewell rep
	15 Ferguson rep
	16 Stanwyck rep
	17 Fisher rep
	18 McCullogh rep
	19 Tupper rep
	20 Tyrrell rep
	21 Brown rep
	22 Marston rep
	23 Frost rep
	24 Cawte and Brown rep
	25 Vaughan rep
	26 Hurst rep
	27 Bates rep
	28 Bates Denis rep
	29 Harte rep
	30 SJ Stanwyck
	31 Hussein rep





